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Dear Mr Woodruffe

Re: Proposal for Funding of and Access to Special Foods

I am writing on behalf of the Allergy Special Interest Group of the Paediatric Society of New Zealand with respect to the proposals to change the funding and access in relation to special foods.  In particular we would like to comment about the proposals as they relate to children with cow’s milk allergy.  
· Access to special foods
While relaxing access to special foods is being suggested to promote more equitable usage, we do not think that infants presenting with cow’s milk allergy should or can be managed in primary care.  Management of these infants is not straightforward, with at least 50% of these children having other associated food allergies.  Investigation of allergy is fraught, and interpretation of results requires considerable expertise.  We believe prescription of extensively hydrolysed and amino acid formula should be restricted to vocationally registered paediatricians.  

· Delisting of goat milk formula

Supported
· Sole supply of each formula category

The current sole supply of EHF is Pepti Junior®, which in practise does not perform as expected to an EHF for children with IgE mediated cow’s milk allergy.   We understand that Pepti Junior® has characteristics that make it advantageous in the management of some gastrointestinal conditions, but in terms of management of IgE mediated cow’s milk allergy it results in clinical reaction in a significant proportion of infants.   Should Pepti Junior® remain the only EHF available in New Zealand we will continue to have a higher proportion of these infants requiring an AA formula.   We note Australia has access to more appropriate EHF such as Nutramigen® and Alfare®; Nutramigen unfortunately stopped being imported into New Zealand in 2001.

· The Australian consensus guideline

This document has been quoted selectively and some conditions included in the guideline have been excluded from the NZ criteria, specifically some of the gastrointestinal symptoms, and food protein induced proctocolitis.  While a small minority of infants presenting with colic will have underlying cow’s milk protein intolerance as a contributing factor, this is well supported in the literature as being a factor for some infants (note level I NHMRC level of 
evidence for irritability).  We believe there should be provision for specialist paediatricians to use these formulae in specific cases.
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· Separate applications
This process could result in potentially harmful delays, particularly for practitioners who do not use the electronic special authority system.  

· Criteria – “Severe food allergy or multiple food allergies (not infant colic, constipation or gastroesophageal reflux) where the child has failed to respond to ….”
This criterion is not well worded, as applies to each of soy, EHF and AA formulae.  
· These criteria relate specifically to cow’s milk allergy, not to food allergy in general.  Infants who have multiple food allergies, or who have severe food allergies, but who are now cow’s milk allergic do not require special formula.

Many children will manifest allergy with reactions to a food (e.g. yoghurt, soy as an ingredient in a food) rather than formula.  
Severity of reaction is not relevant when deciding whether an infant needs an alternate formula.  Many infants will have relatively mild allergic reactions on minimal exposure to an allergen, but still clearly need an alternate formula.

“Where the child has failed to respond to a cow’s milk formula” is poor wording.  Infants with allergy do have a response, albeit adverse, to cow’s milk or soy formula. This should read “failed to tolerate”.
The criteria have not tried to include any definition of food allergy.  Unfortunately definition and hence diagnosis of allergy can be very complicated.  As it stands, the criteria could be interpreted in a widely varied fashion and could be used to support a prescription of EHF / AA formula for infants who don’t require these formulae.  Alternatively other infants who should be managed as allergic (e.g. those who are very highly sensitised) may be put at risk by a perception that there needs to be a clinical reaction prior to consideration of these formulae.    

· Amino Acid based formula criteria – “Severe food allergy where the child has responded to cow’s milk formula with anaphylaxis)”
This criterion should be simplified to “Anaphylaxis to cow’s milk formula / dairy products”.  

We appreciate that development of criteria for these formula are complicated.  The allergy SIG would be happy to assist PHARMAC with development of criteria as pertains to management of infants with cow’s milk allergy.  Thank you for the opportunity to comment on these proposals.  
Yours sincerely

Dr Thorsten Stanley

On behalf of the Allergy Special Interest Group









